	Appendix 3: Iran Government Authorities List


Leader of the Islamic Republic

Ayatollah Sayed ‘Ali Khamenei

The Office of the Supreme Leader

Islamic Republic Street – End of Shahid Keshvar Doust Street, 

Tehran, 

Islamic Republic of Iran

Email:


Via website: http://www.leader.ir/langs/en/index.php?p=letter (English); http://www.leader.ir/langs/fa/index.php?p=letter (Persian)

Salutation: Your Excellency

Head of the Judiciary

Ayatollah Sadegh Larijani

Office of the Head of the Judiciary 

Pasteur St., Vali Asr Ave., south of Serah-e Jomhouri, 

Tehran, 1316814737

Islamic Republic of Iran                  

Email: Via website:http://www.bia-judiciary.ir/tabid/62/Default.aspx;  2nd box (starred)=first name,3rd box(starred)=family name,5th box (starred)=email address, last box=substance of message

Salutation: Your Excellency

Speaker of Parliament

Ali Larijani

Majles-e Shoura-ye Eslami

Baharestan Square

Tehran

Islamic Republic of Iran

Email: Larijani@parliran.ir

Fax: +98 21 3355 6408

Salutation: Your Excellency

President
His Excellency Mahmoud Ahmadinejad
The Presidency, Palestine Avenue, Azerbaijan Intersection, Tehran, Islamic Republic of Iran
Fax: + 98 21 6 649 5880
Email: via website: http://www.president.ir/email/
Secretary General, High Council for Human Rights

Mohammad Javad Larijani

High Council for Human Rights

[Care of] Office of the Head of the Judiciary

Pasteur St, Vali Asr Ave., south of Serah-e Jomhuri

Tehran 1316814737

Islamic Republic of Iran

Fax: +98 21 3390 4986

Email: info@humanrights-iran.ir (In subject line: FAO Mohammad Javad Larijani)

	Appendix 4: Sample letter to the Iranian Authorities regarding executions by stoning


	Please note that this letter is a template for you to amend if you choose. If you are planning an action, you may wish to inform, for example, the Iranian embassy /consulate of this action and its objectives Please provide copies of the letters you send and any replies to the Iran team at the IS.


Your Excellency,

I am writing to express my deep concerns about the issue of executions by stoning in Iran and the fact that Sakineh Mohammadi Ashtiani, Iran Eskandari, Khayrieh Valania, Ashraf Kalhori (or Kalhor), Kobra Babaei, Abbas Hassani, a 21-year-old woman, Sarieh Ebadi, Vali (or Bu-Ali) Janfeshan, Mohammad Ali Navid Khomami, Naghi Ahmadi and two women known as 

“M.Kh”  and  “Hashemi-Nasab” may be facing execution by stoning and that Azar Bagheri currently faces flogging but could have a stoning sentence reimposed. I am also deeply concerned that Maryam Ghorbanzadeh faces execution by hanging for “adultery while married”.
As a state party to the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR), the government of Iran is legally bound to observe the provisions of this treaty and to ensure that they are fully reflected in the country’s laws and practices relating to human rights.  Execution by stoning violates Articles 6 (right to life) and 7 (prohibition of torture and cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment) of the ICCPR.

Moreover, Article 6(2) of the ICCPR states that, in countries which have not abolished the death penalty, sentence of death may be imposed only for “the most serious crimes in accordance with the law in force at the time of the commission of the crime and not contrary to the provisions of the present Covenant and to the Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of the Crime of Genocide”. This penalty can only be carried out pursuant to a final judgement rendered by a competent court. These have been clarified in several UN resolutions, including Resolution 2005/59 of the Commission on Human Rights, which also says that the death penalty should not be imposed for non-violent acts such as sexual relations between consenting adults, nor should it be a mandatory sentence. The UN Human Rights Committee has emphasized that “the death penalty should be a quite exceptional measure”.

Nevertheless, I am concerned that individuals continue be sentenced to death by stoning. At least six executions by stoning (five men and one woman) have been carried out since a moratorium issued by the former Head of the Judiciary in 2002.  At least seven women and four men are at risk of being stoned to death in Iran, while the fate of another two women previously sentenced to stoning remains unclear. In addition, at least one woman faces execution by hanging for “adultery”, while another faces flogging, although the death penalty could also be reimposed in her case.

While Amnesty International recognizes the right of governments to bring to justice those who commit crimes, it opposes the death penalty in all cases as a violation of the right to life and the ultimate form of cruel, inhuman and degrading punishment. Amnesty International believes that execution by stoning aggravates the brutality of the death penalty and is a method specifically designed to increase the victim's suffering as the stones are deliberately chosen to be large enough to cause pain, but not so large as to kill the victim immediately.

I am aware that a draft law amending the Penal Code is currently before the Islamic Consultative Assembly for approval.  I understand that this bill currently does not provide for execution by stoning as a penalty for adultery.  I welcome these steps towards reform, but nonetheless I urge your government, as a State party to the ICCPR, to ensure that any legislation eventually passed is in line with Iran’s obligations under international law, so that no one in Iran risks the death penalty for having consensual sexual relations between adults in private, including by reviewing current Iranian legislation which requires judges to use their knowledge of Islamic law to try cases where no codified law exists.

As a member of Amnesty International, I also oppose the use of flogging as it is a cruel and inhuman punishment which amounts to torture. I urge you to ensure that flogging as a punishment is removed from the Penal Code. 
An immediate moratorium on executions by stoning and on floggings should be enforced until these changes can become law. All individuals, including those named above currently under sentence of death by stoning in Iran should not be executed by stoning or any other method, and anyone held solely on the grounds of consensual sexual relations between adults should be released immediately and unconditionally. 

Yours sincerely,

[Name and title]

